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May 15, 2015
ADDENDUM NO. 2
Request for Proposal:
#15-9739-2CS
Subject:
Mobile Application Development and Website Changes
Gentlemen/Ladies:

Please make the following changes, corrections, additions or deletions to the above referenced Request for Proposal:

Section V, page 7 Anticipated Schedule:
Add:
Oral presentations with shortlisted firms will be held the week of June 8th or week of June 15th, 2015

Section VIII.B.4. Pricing:

Add:
In addition, Offerors shall provide detailed pricing by deliverables and include hourly rates for any staff assigned to the project.  Also include number of hours allocated for each phase of the project.  This detailed pricing structure will provide information to the County as to level of effort associated with each task, charges of on-site meetings and the basis for the firm fixed price submitted.  

Find attached Questions and Answers attached to this addendum

Unless otherwise changed by an addendum, all other information will remain the same.

Sincerely,

Cecelia H. Stowe, CPPO, C.P.M.

Purchasing Director

Sto05@henrico.us
(804) 501-5685
CHS/jfb
1590 E. Parham Road/P.O. Box 90775/Henrico, Virginia 23273-0775

(804) 501-5660  Fax: (804) 501-5693 
RFP #15-9739-2CS

Mobile Application Development and Website Changes

Questions and Answers

May 15, 2015

Q1.
Can companies outside the USA submit proposals for this project? (From India or Canada)


Yes. 

Q2.
Would the selected companies be required to attend meetings in person if outside USA?


Yes.

Q3.
Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (From India or CANADA)


Yes.

Q4. 
Can we submit our proposals via email?

No.  Proposals must be submitted in writing by the due date and time specified. The Purchasing Division will not accept oral proposals, or proposals received by FAX machine or other electronic means.

Q5.
We would like to know if we can participate in this RFP as we are out of State or are we


 Restricted? 


There are no restrictions on the County’s acceptance of proposals.

Q6.
I have never applied for government work and wanted to inquire if there is anything special I need to do or if I just create a proposal and submit it to you with the concept and ideas?


All proposals received by the due date and time will be considered and evaluated in accordance with the Proposal Evaluation/Selection Process on page 19 on the RFP. 

Q7.
My firm produces a unique, responsively designed platform for managing and delivering most types of multimedia in a very responsive way.  If I am not qualified to submit a proposal on the entire solicitation how can I be included in the process?

 
Firms that are not qualified to submit a proposal on the entire scope of work/services requirements should attempt to partner with other firms that will compliment the services they can provide.  

Q8.
Is the goal to have the County Staff manage lodging, events, restaurants and attractions? Or just some?  


Yes, all. 

Q9.
Is the goal to completely remove any integrations from richmondva.com?
Yes.
Q10.
If the County Staff is maintaining the information, where are they going to be gathering the data from?


The County will work with the selected firm to make that decision.  

Q11.
Will our company be in charge of putting the initial data into the back-end portal?


Yes.

Q12.
Please define "Trip Planner Type Functionality"

The County has determined that trip planner functionality is not high on our priority list for this project. 

Q13.
Where the live stream is feeds from the Glen Allen Stadium and any other live streaming events going to be pulled from?


This information will be available to the Successful Offeror after contract award.  Glen Allen will be the only live stream that we will offer for this project scope.
Q14.
Can we have an opportunity to speak directly to the client?  I have some questions about the scope of the project and their goals for the site.


All questions concerning the requirement have been received in writing from interested firms.  At this time the deadline has passed for additional questions to be considered.   

Q15.
They mention they do not want to use Expression Engine for the CMS.  Can I get more information about dissatisfaction with Expression Engine?  We have several CVB's that use Expression Engine and are pleased.


The County would like to move forward with a WordPress platform to integrate with the County government’s platform if necessary in the future. 

Q16.
If the new site will be built in responsive design, why would you duplicate content and functionality on the APP?  Seems like the APP should be primarily focused on sporting event information.  Could we have an opportunity to discuss strategy here?


All questions concerning the requirement have been received in writing from interested firms.  At this time the deadline has passed for additional questions to be considered.  Strategy will be discussed with the selected firm that is awarded the project.  

Q17.   Have funds been approved and allocated for this project?  If so, can that amount be shared?  
If not, is there desired range?

Funds have been allocated and are available for the project. Project range is $60,000 - $80,000.
Q18.   What is the driver to launch in March 2016? Is there a marketing campaign targeted for that 
time?


2016 Jefferson Cup Soccer Tournament

Q19.
What is the evaluation process after the proposal submission?  


All proposals received will be evaluated by the Selection Committee in accordance with 
the Proposal Evaluation/Selection Process contained on page 19 and 20 of the RFP.

Q20.
Please describe the various team members from Henrico that will be involved and how they 

will participate throughout the project lifecycle (i.e. what is making up of your project team)?

Various staff from the Recreation & Parks Division will be involved as well as IT personnel and other assigned individuals.  Project Manager will be the Tourism Supervisor.

Q21.
 Would you like this project to be implemented in an agile fashion (i.e. Scrum)?


The County would consider this type of implementation.

Q22.
Who is the business sponsor for the initiative?

There is no business sponsor.

Q23.
Who are the key stakeholders for this project? How will they be involved and where are they 
located?

Various staff from the Recreation & Parks Division will be involved as well as IT personnel and other assigned individuals.  Project Manager will be the Tourism Supervisor.  Other community stakeholders could be involved in an advisory role.  All staff is located within Henrico County. 

Q24.
Do you expect the implementation partner to provide ongoing support and enhancements following initial launch, or will Henrico support this internally?


This will be discussed during the interview process with the short-listed Offerors.  Henrico is open to options.

Q25.   Would you consider a phased approach that provides some initial baseline functionality 
followed by an enhancement phase?

The County is open to discussing a phased approach if all components will still be completed on schedule (March 1, 2016). 

 
 Q26.
Are there any results available from pre-existing user/stakeholder research that we will be able to review at the start of the project?   If so, please specify the types of research you have already conducted (e.g., surveys, focus groups, etc.) and describe in detail what will be available for our use during the Discovery phase.


No.  Only extrapolated feedback from users and stakeholders.

Q27.   During the Discovery phase, will we be able to speak directly to a sample of your users and 

stakeholders?  

This will be discussed with the Successful Offeror.

Q28.   Do you anticipate repurposing a lot of existing content or mostly creating new content from 
scratch?


Repurposing website content is expected.

Q29.    How many authorized content contributors are anticipated?


This depends on the solutions provided by the Successful Offeror.

 
Q30.   Please list all external systems that the current system interacts with as well as systems with 
which you have a need for the new site to integrate.  

The website interacts with external links for live streaming, with a weather service, with social media, with google maps, and with an API for hotel, event, and restaurant information.  All of the above will continue with the exception of the API.

Q31.
Are all required integrations points currently available and documented? 


No.

Q32.   Are there any predefined technologies that must be used for front-end development?


No.

Q33.    Are you expecting the Vendor to conduct a detailed CMS platform assessment?


No (but this is up to the Offeror to do if they would like).

  

Q34.    What are the current deficiencies with the current platform?


Geographic base of information is too broad, and information is consistently flawed. 

Q35.   Will there be any accessibility requirements? (508 compliance, WAI-ARIA)

This is something to which the County will strive for in the future; however, it is not currently a requirement.  

Q36.   Does Henrico County utilize a push notification provider currently?

No.

Q37.   We would recommend supporting Android 4.1 and iOS 7+ for the applications, does Henrico 
have a need to support older platforms; can we get some analytical data?

At this time, Henrico does not have an official list of supported mobile platforms. Therefore, the vendors may be able to set their own minimal requirements. Web analytics show that very little traffic comes from devices running versions older than iOS 7 and Android 4. 

Q38.   For publishing photos back to the website, it is assumed that the CMS would handle, would 
Henrico be open to other photo service providers such as Instagram or Flickr?


Yes.

Q39.   Does Henrico have anyone to manage the applications in their respective app stores (Apple 

App Store and Google Play)?


No.

Q40.
Which social media services, if any, does Henrico leverage currently and should the mobile 
app need to consider incorporation of social media?


Twitter predominantly.  Facebook secondary.  Instagram is planned.

Q41.   Has Henrico researched options for Video/media hosting we should consider?


No.

Q42.
What analytics platform are you currently using?  Should we assume the same for this new 
site?


Google Analytics

Q43.   Are there current site analytics you can share to help our response?


Data will be shared with Successful Offeror. 

Q44.   Is there any pre-existing SEO functionality? If yes, which technology?

Only best practices provided by current CMS and previous vendor solution. 

Q45.    Are there any predefined performance metrics that we should know about (i.e. page rendering 
times, etc.)?

Current average page loading time for the website is 3.34 seconds.  The County would want to stay within best practices for these types of metrics.

 
Q46.   How will success be measured?

Engagement metrics, analytics, downloads; average users as well as customer feedback will be reviewed regularly to gauge growth and success. 

Q47.   Should we include Maintenance support, post launch, as part of our response?


Yes, if that is part of your planned proposal going forward.  Henrico is open to options.

Q48.
Does your organization already have a working relationship with an advertising or marketing 
agency capable of fulfilling this scope of services that are listed in the RFP? If yes, have you 
been satisfied by the work of that agency, and do you expect that agency will put forth a 
response to 
your RFP?


The County does not have any on-going contracts with firms capable of providing the 
services requested in this RFP.

Q49.
Is the incumbent going to participate in the re-design efforts?

The incumbent would share content/creative that is owned by the County.  That would be the extent of their participation.  


Q50.
Do have any budget guidance?


See Question 17.

Q51.
What is it about EE that you dislike? Are there specific features that you require in a CMS? 

See Question 15.

Q52.
There is mention of a web app. Is this different than the http://visithenrico.com/ website? If so, 
please point us to the web app. 

The web application is delivers the same information in a slightly different manner with 

links to GPS directions to allow users to navigate through attractions/resources within 

the County. 

Q53. 
How many users of the mobile app do you anticipate? 
Exact number of anticipated users is not available; however, the numbers will be significantly higher during the summer and during large sporting and special events held by the County.  An example would be:  during one of our major baseball tournaments, we would have 2000+ players with thousands of family members visiting Henrico over a ten-day period."

Q54. 
How do you plan on promoting the mobile app?  

Through marketing efforts geared towards the County’s sports and heritage visitors, to include search engine marketing.
Q55. 
For push notifications, how important is A-B testing to you? 
At this time, it is not a priority. This would be one of our first uses of push notifications. 

Q56. 
Other than downloads, what metrics are you expecting to track in the mobile app? 

Other important metrics would include ongoing users, max concurrent users, users who are using push notifications, users acting on push notifications, and general usage of different sections in the app. 


Q57. 
Do you have a preference as to whether the app is built natively, or using a multi-platform 
framework, 
such as React, Phone Gap, Titanium, etc.? 

The County prefers native solutions due to how they often act more ‘at home’ on their particular platform than multi-platform solutions. There are certain nuances, animations, and user interface elements that can really make a difference in how the app is perceived by the end user. Ultimately we are open to any development platform, as we are looking more at how the app works and feels than how it is developed.

Q58. 
Are there any additional third parties services that you wish to integrate, such as Trip Advisor?


See Question 12.  

Q59.
Has a budget been established for this initiative, or does the County have an expectation? 


See Question 17.

Q60.
Can you provide website traffic history for the existing site (average monthly visits/sessions and page views)?

This information will be shared with the Successful Offeror.

Q61.
Can vendors bid on specific parts of the requested services? Our firm is the global leader in designing/developing websites, CMS and CRM database systems for tourism marketing organizations – but we do not develop native mobile apps.  


See Question 7.

Q62.
Can you point me in the right direction to get details on the initial award for the travel site and mobile app that was done a couple years ago?  I am looking for the scope of services that was requested at that time.  

The initial project was done through a County contract.  Scope of services is not available; however, the project entailed the creation of a first generation tourism website and web app. 
Q63.
Can you please share who’s the incumbent? And when does the current contract expire?

West Cary Group.  Work performed by the firm was project specific and was not an on-going contract.

Q64.   Can you please clarify how many FTE’s are working on the current contract?


That data is not available. 

Q65.   Are there any special circumstances or "hot buttons" of which we should be aware?


No. 

Q66.    What is the anticipated number of personnel needed for this project?


That would be determined by the Successful Offeror.

Q67.    Is the work to be done at the client site or the contractor site?


Contractor site, with the exception of project meetings of which the location is TBD.

Q68.    What is the Budget or spending estimated for this effort?

See Question 17.
Q69.    Is the budget approved for this year for this effort?


Yes.

Q70.   Who is doing (other companies or the State employees)?

 

a)      Website maintenance

b)      Mobile app maintenance

c)      Hosting 

See Question 24.

Q71.    What is the current level of effort for?

 

a)      Website maintenance

b)      Mobile app maintenance

c)      Hosting 

Monthly and “as needed” maintenance is done by the incumbent firm. 

Q72.   Do you have your own backend database, looks like content is pulled from Richmond website and other sites?

The County will no longer be using that API feed.  This proposal should include the creation of a new backend database. 

Q73.  
What is the criticality of this website - accuracy, timeliness, governance etc?


All of the above is significant to the County’s presentation of information. 

Q74.  
Presume this website is not directly linked to any sort of revenue - it is a cost of providing a 


service to the citizens?


Correct.

Q75.  
What is the motivation to undertake this project – citizens’ desire, 
department initiative, government mandate or something else?


Multiple reasons propel the project forward at this time.

Q76.  
Are there any major external stakeholders - citizens group, advocacy groups etc?

The County has an advisory group that can serve as a citizen focus group when needed.

Q77.  
When the system pulls data from outside sources, what level of data quality needs to be 
applied to it 


High.

Q78.
Presume the contractor does not need to address any data ownership rights issues (including 
uploaded content)

Not that we are aware of; however, further discussion will be held with Successful Offeror during the project process. 

Q79.
Is there a data retention requirement or guidelines - this can be addressed in requirements 
phase


This information will be discussed with the Successful Offeror. 

Q80.  
General policy question for such work - can any work be performed by contractor staff residing 
outside the state/country 

Yes.

Q81.
Have annual appropriations been approved for this effort?  If yes, through what date have they 


been approved?  If no, what is the current plan or timeline for approval?



See Question 17.  


Q82.
The overall statement of work appears to cover a significant amount of scope.  What is the 
approved (or anticipated) funding?


See Question 17.
Q83.
What type of contract is Henrico County looking to establish with the Offeror (e.g., time and materials (T&M), firm fixed price (FFP))?



The County is seeking proposals from Offerors for a firm fixed price based on the services requested in the RFP.  
Q84.
In Section III.F.2, copywriting services should be provided, if needed.  How should the Offeror account for this effort in their proposed cost estimate? 



Pricing for this service could be included as an option and based on hourly rates.


Q85.
On page 2, Background, this effort is not a complete redesign of the site.  In Section III.B.2, the 

logo and color scheme should be kept.  Please provide any additional items that should be 


carried over from the existing site such that this is not part of the redesign effort.  



Navigable sections, although names will change, should be maintained (eat, play, etc.).  



Some of the static website copy could also be repurposed.

Q86.
Do you anticipate that the web site’s current layout, navigation, and user experience can remain the same? 



The County is open to a different visual layout as well as anything that would make the user experience more efficient and more inviting.

Q87.
Is Henrico County open to contracting with a business outside of Virginia, but in the region?



All proposals received by the due date and time will be considered and evaluated in 


accordance with the Proposal Evaluation/Selection Process on page 19 on the RFP.

Q88.
Is there a need to integrate with other external trip planning services, which have superior planning capabilities?

See Question 58.

Q89.
If there is a limit for overall offline storage? And if it is important to have one, then is there a policy around what content gets priority?



Not at this time.  This is subject to the solution presented by the Offeror. 

Q90.
Are device considerations need to be taken? What is the backward compatibility policy? What versions of iOS and Android does the county want to support?



See Question 37.

Q91.
Are biometric capability taken in to consideration for iOS users?

Not part of a requirement.

Q92.
Would tracking user travel route and storing offline be useful?



Yes.
Q93.
Is the approach native or HTML5 for mobile apps?



The County prefers native for the user experience. HTML5 can work, but must present a 



satisfactory user experience. 

Q94.
Does the proposed CMS backend support content?



The Offeror should propose how the new CMS system will support content."
Q95.
Is there iBeacon integration in the app?



Not a requirement at this time.

Q96.
Do we plan to have social login integration? If yes, what social networks are preferred?

This depends on how the push notification logins are set up.  The County will 

work with Successful Offeror on this requirement. Currently, no user logins are required/configured.

Q.97
What is the current technology stack used at Visit Henrico (Microsoft, Java, other)?

VisitHenrico.com currently uses a LAMP stack hosted by a major hosting provider. The CMS is powered by Expression Engine. Section III.F.1 of the RFP discusses the County’s expectation as to the options that will be considered for future hosting.
Q98.
For search, are third party products being used?



No.

Q99.
Can anonymous users upload the videos or only Henrico employees can upload videos?



The County is open to user upload with an internal administrative approval step.

Q100.
Does Henrico have any existing push notification server(s)?



See Question 36.

Q101.
Does Henrico have any existing live streaming capabilities in house or using a third 

party?


Yes. Granicus

Q102.
The current database for third party is maintained by Visit Henrico or is it a third party 

(refer C. 1.)?


Third Party.

Q103.
What is the current volume of users on website?


This information will be shared with the Successful Offeror.

Q104.
Does the website capture analytics, if so can they be shared?


See Question 43.

Q105.
What is the minimum version to be supported for the browsers?

IE9 and up, modern versions of Chrome, Safari, and Firefox. 10% of our users still use IE8, so possible graceful degradations would be nice to have.

Q106.
What is the minimum version of iOS and Android to be supported?

See Question 37.

Q107.
Is the mobile application targeted only for Phones or is it targeted for Tablets also?


The mobile application is mainly targeted for phones.  

Q108.
Apart from the Operating system (Android/iPhone) are there specific mobile vendors 

Henrico is targeting (Samsung, Dell, HP, HTC, etc.)?


No.

Q109.
Does Henrico have a mobile development strategy in place?

At this time, Henrico does not have an official mobile development strategy, but has research and knowledge into this field, as well as their path into mobile. This application is only for Visit Henrico, not the general government. 

Q110.
Does Henrico currently have a mobile application? If yes, what is the nature of that 

application?

Not at this time, but is planned. A majority of the County’s mobile presence has been handled by mobile ready websites. 

Q111.
What software development tools are currently being used for Mobile application if any? 

(Example: XCode, Eclipse, Xamarain, Phone Gap, Jetbrains, etc.)

Henrico does not currently have a mobile application. Please see Q57 for preferences in mobile development. 

Q112.
Would current security methods be utilized to secure the user access via the mobile 

app? If yes, what is the current security method (Example LDAP, Active Directory, etc.)? 

Also is it available as a service?

To be determined by Successful Offeror and the County after contract award.

Q113.
How is the News Feed being created? 


Manually. 

Q114.
Is there any compliance or regulatory requirement for the mobile application?


See Question 35. 

Q115.
Given the scope of requirements for both web and mobile (strategy, design, 

development, test, and launch) what size budget is available to achieve stated results 

by early 2016?  


See Question 17. 

Q116.
The RFP asks that the app “provides similar functionality as the visithenrico.com website.” The 
website seems to be primarily an informational website that categorizes information. Do you 
see the app being primarily an information resource? 


Information, along with GPS guidance and push alert capability. 

Q117.
An “easily maintainable database” can be managed in a many ways. Is Henrico county 
comfortable with a secure internet based portal to manage (create, edit, and publish) this data? 
Are there existing databases that would be ported over to the new solution?


Yes – secure internet based portal 

No – existing databases. 

Q118.
WordPress was singled out as a preferred CMS. Is this because of the open nature of the 
platform, some particular feature(s), or a staff within Henrico that is familiar with the system?

Because this is the platform being used by the County government site, the County would like to be consistent with platforming for future purposes.

Q119.
Trip planning can be a wide ranging objective. Are there particular features that Henrico Co. is 
looking for?

See Question 58.

Q120.
Has Henrico Co. done any live streaming events before?

Yes, for years.  There is only one sports facility at which this can be done currently.  That is what should be incorporated.  The County uses Granicus at this time.

Q.121.Hosting of the web site and components - The County will entertain multiple options for 

hosting.  However, the County will not accept an option of hosted by a cloud provider and 

maintained by the County. Hosting should also be addressed for the mobile application, 

database and push notification servers.  Can you clarify what methods would be acceptable to the county?  I.E. County hosted vendor maintained or what the specific request of the vendor is on this portion. 

Section III.F.1 of the RFP discusses the County’s expectation as to the options that will be considered.

Q123.
Provide copywriting services for the website or mobile application, if needed.  Can you clarify if this is a requirement to bid (copywriting) or if it is an optional item that will 
weigh in on the selection criteria and if so what % or points is this section.
The ability of the Offeror to meet this requirement would be scored under Functional 
Requirements listed on page 19 of the RFP.

Q125.
Scope of Services Section C #4 – What new tourism industries’ information infrastructures are 
to be pulled from into the new site.  


See Question 72.

Q125.
Scope of Services Section C #4 – What tourism industries’ information infrastructures is the 
County pulling from today and how are you pulling the information today?  


See Question 72.

Q126.
Scope of Services Section C #2d – Please provide what information is permissible to capture 
and log within the Website and Mobile application 

The County would like to capture information that would enable future communication with visitors and users, with their permission (i.e. name, email, address, etc.). 

Q127.
Scope of Services Section F #1 – Are we able host this service in the cloud?


Yes, if maintained by the Offeror.

Q128.
Scope of Services Section F #1 – When the County says “maintained by the county” what 
exactly is being maintained, the website and mobile infrastructure and/or the content within the 
site?

This scope was referencing hosting and infrastructure, but it would be both. This is if the final solution is deliverable and hosted by the County. 

Q129.
How many users are expected to visit this site? 


Analytic information will be shared with the Successful Offeror.

Q130.
How many people will be updating content within the site? 


Fewer than five.

Q131.
Does the county already have an Apple and Google account to publish apps? 

No.

Q132.
If county does not currently have an Apple or Google account, will the county be providing the 


accounts? 

This should be an option for the County in the future. 

Q133.
For the embedded video will the county be hosting those on a YouTube account?  

The County would prefer, at this time, to upload internally for informational videos; however, we are open to the option to upload videos by users with internal administrative approval  
Q134.
Will the mobile application need to have access to personal calendars internal to Henrico 
County (behind firewall?)

No.

Q135.
As part of continuous improvement, is the county looking for the provider to maintain the 
system and the county to maintain the content or will the provider maintain both?

The County will maintain the content.  The County is open to the Offeror maintaining the system.  Provide detailed pricing for consideration.

Q136.
Please provide any existing Applications, Applets, or solutions the provider will need to 


integrate, leveraging existing or building new?


See Question 30. 

Q137.
The current website utilizes Expression Engine as its CMS. Is staff satisfied with Expression? 


Engine? If not, should the vendor provide an alternative CMS recommendation? 


See Question 15.

Q138.
Do you currently utilize any major 3rd party systems that you would like to be integrated into 
the current site? 


No.

Q139.
Will the new website need to adhere to any compliance standards (504,508, ADA)? If yes, 


please provide a detailed list of compliance requirements. 

See Question 35.

Q140.
p.3, B2-  “only new copy and current copy updates would need to be generated by your firm.” 
Can you please give additional information about the type and quantity of content that 
would 
need to be generated? Would all copy need to be updated for the new website? 


No.  Only copy that is inaccurate or does not fit with the new project layout/design.

Q141.
p.3 B3- Would site search functionality need to include pdfs/docs/etc? 


Yes.

Q142.
p. 4 B13- What is the anticipated number of pages to be migrated? Will content migration be 
the responsibility of the vendor?  

The current site contains 650+ pages – this includes the API listings.  Migration of content will be discussed with Successful Offeror. 

Q143.
p. 4 B14- Please describe in greater detail what is desired for the trip planner feature, if known. 
Would there be a user login feature required so visitors can save their trip plans? 

See Question 58.

Q144.
p. 5 C2- “Offerors should address how they will collect this database information.”  What is the 
expectation of the vendor in collecting database information? Does this mean the actual 
restaurant, 
hotel, etc. information? Is there any existing data source that can be utilized? 
What is the anticipated number of facilities that would be included? 

The solution provided by the Offeror should address possible database collection information options.  Henrico County has 500+ restaurants and 70+ hotel/lodging properties.  

Q145.
P5-  “In addition to the features of the website” Should all of the website pages and features be 
included in the app or will recommendations as to the included app functionality be discussed 
in the information architecture/user experience stages of the project? 

This will be discussed with the Successful Offeror.  All database information will need to be accessible via mobile app. 

Q146.
p. 5-  There is a desire for offline functionality for the application. Will the offline version of the 
application require the same functionality and content as the online one (complete photo 
gallery, maps, etc.)?

There will only be one application, with possible offline functionality. The content available offline may differ. 

Q147.
p. 8-  Regarding payment details, is Net 30 an acceptable payment term (as opposed to 45 
days)? Also, 
is deliverable based invoicing acceptable (i.e. invoicing after the site 
architecture phase, after the development phase, etc.) 


The County will consider alternate payment terms such as 30 days.  Offerors may also 
provide payment options to include one-time payment upon completion, milestone 
payments based on deliverables, or other similar options.  The County will not pay 

for services that have not been received and will not make any payments upon 
contract signing. The County will consider all other payment options, will negotiate 
the final payment schedule with the Successful Offeror and include the schedule in the 
contract document.

Q148.
p. 28-  “provide evidence of financial security” - Can you please provide specific examples of 
the documents required here? 


Please provide evidence of the firm’s financial stability.  If publically traded this would 
include audited financial statements.  Firms that are not publically traded may provide 
appropriate similar information for review by the Selection Committee.  

Q149.
Instead of uploading videos directly to the CMS, can these videos be referenced from an 
existing Vimeo or YouTube account?

Yes.

Q150.
 Do you require any additional social media integration with Facebook and Instagram beyond 
static links to those sites? 

No; however, maintaining the current Twitter feed (our primary social media) on the home page is essential.

Q151.
 There is an existing mobile site for visithenrico.com – does this need to stay intact?


No. 

Q152.
 Can you prioritize the following requirements? (as outlined on page 4; realizing these are a 
combination 
of both website and mobile requirements)

· Real-time weather (5)
· Push notifications for schedule updates, tournament updates, etc. (3)
· Trip planner-type functionality (8)

· Possibly allow end-users to outline their interests through a profile and for us to push timely in-app notifications and information to them based on geo-location. (6)

· Allow check-ins to locations, commenting and liking through the social media functionality such as Facebook or Four Square. (7)

· Show off events and promote Henrico with rich photo galleries and videos. (2)

· Mapping and navigation to all points of local interest, stations, hotels, restaurants, and Visit Henrico listings.  (Google maps would be fine) (1)
· Ability to watch live streaming of games at The Glen Allen Stadium at RF&P park and any other live streaming events done through Henrico County. (4) 

Q153.
 Can we assume the current data tourism data feed will not be used in a future release?


That is correct. 
Q154.
 As it relates to the data feeds / sources, is it safe to assume that the County does not have 
access (or knowledge of) “official” sources of data that can be used for this solution? Along 
similar lines, 
is there any budget available in the event that these feeds (one or multiple) are 
not free for general 
use?


Correct.  There is no official source.  The Offeror should offer options for sourcing data 

as part of their proposal.  Costs should be included in the maintenance section of the RFP.  

Q155.
 Given that all (or nearly all) data points will be sourced through external data sources, there is 
a risk that manual data inputs could introduce confusion if a remote data source eventually 
sources a similar entry.  Can you expand upon 
how you envision this working, particularly in 
situations like this?


Quality control measures will be discussed with the Successful Offeror. 

Q156.
 Are there predefined quality controls / metrics that the solution to adhere to as it relates to the 
new data feeds? How will errors be detected?  What does a formal quality control 
program look like in a solution such as this?

Since no solutions have been presented at this time, this conversation will need to take place once the contract has been awarded. 

Q157.
 Are there existing mobile apps (“beacons”) that reflect a future vision for the Visit Henrico 
mobile app? 
 Along similar lines, are you familiar with any white label (pre-packaged) mobile 
app solutions that could be used for a project like this?

Because what Henrico County does is unique, there are no specific beacon apps.   Apps that exemplify the County’s visual and functional goals will be discussed with the Successful Offeror. 

Q158.
Outside of possible photo contributions, is it safe to assume that mobile app users are simply 
“pulling” data from the database, vs. “pushing” new data to it? (e.g. new events)

Users can submit events that meet predetermined criteria through the website (with administrative approval).  It is possible that this process could also occur with the mobile app.  The County will discuss with the successful Offeror. 

Q159.
Which of these mobile app requirements are considered mandatory for the initial release?  
Similarly, what is the relative priority?  Bold are mandatory.

- Offline usage (6)


- Push notifications (2)


- Photo / image upload capabilities (3)


- IOS vs. Android (1)


- Open Table integration (4)


- Calendar “addition” functionality (7)
Q160.
 The RFP mentions the need to provide directions / GPS navigation to locations found within 

the Visit Henrico database.  Can this be something performed by Google Maps (as one 
implementation example)?


Yes.

Q161.
 Since the mobile app will pull data from the main web site, is the County comfortable with a 
phased approach that forces completion of the website ahead of the mobile app? Note, 
there 
can be some parallelization, but employing a phased approach can help reduce risk and 
provide a greater level of predictability.


See Question 25.

Q162.
 Are there any aspects of the website that do not need to be included within the mobile app?

News Highlights, Accolades, Plan Your Trip, Plan Your Event – These sections are not necessary from a mobile standpoint.  The mobile app assumes the user is already here and is looking for something specific. 

Q163.
We have read your RFP and would like to know what the budget for the project is. This 
information will give us a better understanding of the kind of development you're looking 
for and how we can present a proposal that better meets your need.


See Question 17.
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